UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

×	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECT	ION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE	E SECURITIES EXCHANGE AC	Γ OF 1934
	For the quarterly period ended: <u>September 30, 2</u>	<u>)25</u>		
			or	
	TRANSITION REPORT PERSUANT TO SECT	ION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE	SECURITIES EXCHANGE AC	T OF 1934
	For the transition period from	. ,		
	For the transition period from to			
		Commission	File Number: <u>001-38951</u>	
		ARTELO BIO	OSCIENCES, INC	
			strant as specified in its charter)	
	Nevada			33-1220924
	(State or other jurisdicti	on of		(IRS Employer
	incorporation or organiz	ation)		Identification No.)
	505 Lomas Santa Fe, Su	ite 160,		
	Solana Beach, CA U			92075
	(Address of principal executi	ve offices)		(Zip Code)
Secu	(Former urities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Ac		N/A former fiscal year, if changed sinc	e last report)
	Title of each class	Trad	ing Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
	Common Stock, \$0.001 par value per share		ARTL	The Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC
India (§23	on this (or for such shorter period that the registrant was cate by check mark whether the registrant has sul 32.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 mont	s required to file such repo omitted electronically eve hs (or for such shorter peri	rts), and (2) has been subject to sury Interactive Data File required od that the registrant was required	to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T to submit such files). ⊠ Yes □ No
				filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth rging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
	Large accelerated filer		Accelerated filer	
	Non-accelerated filer	\boxtimes	Smaller reporting company Emerging growth company	
	n emerging growth company, indicate by check mar punting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a)		ted not to use the extended transit	ion period for complying with any new or revised financial
Indi	cate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell	company (as defined in Ru	le 12b-2 of the Exchange Act) Yes	s □ No ⊠
The	Registrant had 2,018,746 shares of common stock is	ssued and outstanding as o	f November 10, 2025.	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.	Financial Statements	3
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	20
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	33
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	33
PART II - C	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	34
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	34
Item 2.	<u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	34
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	34
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	34
Item 5.	Other Information	34
Item 6.	Exhibits	35
CLCNIATELIT	A P.C.	20
SIGNATUE	<u>CES</u>	36
	2	

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

ARTELO BIOSCIENCES, INC. Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) (In thousands, except share data)

	September 30, 2025		Dec	cember 31, 2024
ASSETS				
Current Assets				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	1,720	\$	2,338
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		107		219
Total Current Assets		1,827		2,557
Operating lease right-of-use assets		73		99
Digital assets		325		-
Intangible asset		2,039		2,039
Other assets		3		3
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	4,267	\$	4,698
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Current Liabilities				
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$	3,868	\$	1,676
Due to related parties		32		61
Operating lease liabilities - current portion		39		35
Accrued interest - convertible notes		46		-
Convertible notes		875		-
Total Current Liabilities		4,860		1,772
Operating lease liabilities		40		69
TOTAL LIABILITIES		4,900		1,841
		.,,, 00		1,011
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Preferred Stock, par value \$0.001, 69,444 shares authorized,				
0 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024		-		-
Common Stock, par value \$0.001, 500,000,000 shares authorized and				
1,555,493 and 567,582 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, respectively		2		1
Additional paid-in capital		58,491		53,194
Accumulated deficit		(58,849)		(50,136)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(277)		(202)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY		(633)		2,857
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY	\$	4,267	\$	4,698

ARTELO BIOSCIENCES, INC. Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share data)

	Three Months Ended September 30,					Nine Mon Septem		
		2025 2024			2025		2024	
OPERATING EXPENSES								
General and administrative	\$	1,814	\$	870	\$	4,088	\$	2,779
Research and development		1,275		325		4,530		3,517
Total operating expenses		3,089		1,195		8,618		6,296
Loss from operations		(3,089)		(1,195)		(8,618)		(6,296)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)								
Interest income		5		-		13		-
Interest expense		(111)		-		(183)		-
Net change in fair value of digital assets		75		-		75		-
Net change in fair value of trading marketable securities				63		<u> </u>		248
Total other income (expense)		(31)		63		(95)		248
Provision for income taxes		<u> </u>			_	<u>-</u>	_	<u>-</u>
NET LOSS	\$	(3,120)	\$	(1,132)	\$	(8,713)	\$	(6,048)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)								
Foreign currency translation adjustments		18		(15)		(75)		(15)
Total other comprehensive income (Loss)		18	'	(15)		(75)		(15)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS	\$	(3,102)	\$	(1,147)	\$	(8,788)	\$	(6,063)
Basic and diluted loss per share of common stock	\$	(3.97)	\$	(2.10)	\$	(12.48)	\$	(11.28)
Basic and diluted weighted average of shares of common stock outstanding		787		538		698		536

ARTELO BIOSCIENCES, INC. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity (Unaudited) (In thousands)

	Commo	on Sto	ck		dditional Paid-in	Ac	cumulated		Accumulated Other omprehensive																									
	Shares		mount		Capital																										Deficit	Income (loss)		 Total
Balance, December 31, 2024	567	\$	1	\$	53,194	\$	(50,136)	\$	(202)	\$ 2,857																								
Stock based compensation	-		-		192		-		-	192																								
Net loss for the period	-		-		-		(2,372)		-	(2,372)																								
Other comprehensive loss	-		-		-		-		(25)	(25)																								
Balance, March 31, 2025	567	\$	1	\$	53,386	\$	(52,508)	\$	(227)	\$ 652																								
Common stock issued for cash, net of issuance costs	137		-		1,081		-		-	1,081																								
Stock based compensation	-		-		150		-		-	150																								
Net loss for the period	-		-		-		(3,221)		-	(3,221)																								
Other comprehensive loss			-				_		(68)	(68)																								
Balance, June 30, 2025	704	\$	1	\$	54,617	\$	(55,729)	\$	(295)	\$ (1,406)																								
Common stock issued for cash, net of issuance costs	750		1		3,310		-		-	3,311																								
Warrants exercised	101		-		132		-		-	132																								
Stock based compensation	-		-		432		-		-	432																								
Net loss for the period	-		-		-		(3,120)		-	(3,120)																								
Other comprehensive loss	<u>-</u> _		<u>-</u>						18	18																								
Balance, September 30, 2025	1,555	\$	2	\$	58,491	\$	(58,849)	\$	(277)	\$ (633)																								
	Commo Shares		ck mount		Additional Paid-in Capital	Ac	cumulated Deficit	C	Accumulated Other comprehensive ncome (loss)	 Total																								
Balance, December 31, 2023	532	\$	1	\$	52,264	\$	(40,310)	\$	(203)	\$ 11,752																								
Common stock issued for cash	6		_		55		_		_	55																								
Stock based compensation	-		_		213		_		_	213																								
Net loss for the period	_		_		-		(2,483)		_	(2,483)																								
Balance, March 31, 2024	538	\$	1	\$	52,532	\$	(42,793)	\$	(203)	\$ 9,537																								
Stock based compensation	-		-		195		-		-	195																								
Net loss for the period	-		-		-		(2,433)		-	(2,433)																								
Balance, June 30, 2024	538	\$	1	\$	52,727	\$	(45,226)	\$	(203)	\$ 7,299																								
Stock based compensation	<u>-</u>		_		209		-		-	209																								
Net loss for the period	-		-		-		(1,132)		=	(1,132)																								
Other comprehensive loss	-		-		-		-		(15)	(15)																								
Balance, September 30, 2024	538	\$	1	\$	52,936	\$	(46,358)	\$	(218)	\$ 6,361																								

ARTELO BIOSCIENCES, INC. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(În thousands)

	Nine Month Septembo	
	2025	2024
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Net loss	\$ (8,713)	(6,048)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:		,
Stock-based compensation	774	617
Net change in fair value of trading marketable securities	-	(248)
Net change in fair value of digital assets	(75)	=
Non-cash lease expense	26	24
Amortization of debt discounts and debt issuance costs	137	-
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	111	518
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	2,140	(629)
Accounts payable - related parties	(29)	5
Accrued interest	46	-
Fixed cash payments related to operating leases	(26)	(22)
Net cash used in operating activities	(5,609)	(5,783)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Purchase of digital assets	(250)	-
Investment in trading marketable securities	-	(481)
Proceeds from disposition of marketable securities		7,750
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities	(250)	7,269
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
Proceeds from issuance of common stock for cash, net	4,391	55
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes, net	737	-
Proceeds from exercise of warrants	132	-
Net cash provided by financing activities	5,260	55
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash	(19)	1
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	(618)	1,542
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period	2,338	2,815
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period		\$ 4,357
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION		
	c	<u> </u>
Cash paid for interest	<u>\$</u>	<u>-</u>
Cash paid for income taxes	<u>\$</u>	<u>-</u>
NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
Initial recognition of the right-of-use asset and lease liability	\$ - 5	\$ 111

ARTELO BIOSCIENCES, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In thousands, except share and per share data and units of digital assets)

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

ARTELO BIOSCIENCES, INC. ("we", "us", "our", the "Company") is a Nevada corporation incorporated on May 2, 2011, and based in Solana Beach, California. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"), and the Company's fiscal year end is December 31.

The Company registered wholly owned subsidiaries in Ireland, Trinity Reliant Ventures Limited, on November 11, 2016, and in the United Kingdom ("UK"), Trinity Research & Development Limited, on June 2, 2017. On January 8, 2020, Trinity Research and Development Limited changed its name to Artelo Biosciences Limited. The Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Canada, Artelo Biosciences Corporation, on March 18, 2020. Operations in the subsidiaries have been consolidated in the financial statements.

The Company is a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company focused on developing therapeutics that target lipid-signaling pathways, including treatments intended to modulate the endocannabinoid system (the "ECS"), a family of receptors and neurotransmitters that form a biochemical communication network throughout the body.

Going Concern

The Company has incurred losses since inception and incurred a net loss of \$8,713 during the nine months ended September 30, 2025. As of September 30, 2025, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$1,720.

In July 2023, the Company filed a \$75,000 in aggregate value shelf registration statement on Form S-3 which became effective on July 14, 2023. The shelf registration statement is effective for three years and permits the Company to sell, from time to time, up to \$75,000 of the Company's common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants, and/or units subject to a limit of one-third (1/3) of the Company's public float within a twelve (12) month period if the public float of the Company is less than \$75,000 as of relevant measurement dates under applicable securities laws.

On May 1, 2025, the Company issued at-market, unsecured convertible notes with gross proceeds of \$900. The convertible notes bear interest at 12.0% and have a maturity of 180 days. The convertible notes are subject to voluntary and automatic provisions for conversion into the Company's common stock, as well as conversion into warrants to purchase the Company's common stock for a five-year period at a price of \$6.24 per share, as adjusted for the subsequent reverse stock split. Certain members of the Company's board of directors, an officer and consultants to the Company acquired \$350 of the convertible notes.

On June 24, 2025, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with the purchasers named therein, for the private placement of (i) 136,843 shares of the Company's common stock at \$5.82 per share, (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase 93,180 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at \$5.819 per pre-funded warrant, (iii) warrants to purchase 460,046 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$5.82 per share, and (iv) warrants to purchase 230,023 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$10.00 per share. Total gross proceeds were \$1,425, net proceeds were \$1,079 after transaction costs of \$346.

On July 18, 2025, the Company entered into an At-The-Market Offering Agreement (the "Sales Agreement") with R.F. Lafferty & Co., Inc. ("R.F. Lafferty") under which we may offer and sell up to \$6.5 million of shares of our common stock from time to time through an "at the market" offering program under which R.F. Lafferty will act as sales agent. Under the Sales Agreement, the Company will set the parameters for the sale of shares, including the number or dollar amount of shares to be issued, the time period during which sales are requested to be made, limitations on the number or dollar amount of shares that may be sold in any one trading day and any minimum price below which sales may not be made. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, R.F. Lafferty may sell the shares by methods deemed to be an "at the market" offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). We have no obligation to sell any shares under the Sales Agreement and may at any time suspend solicitation and offers under the Sales Agreement. The shares will be issued pursuant to the Company's shelf registration statement on Form S-3, including the prospectus supplement contained therein, which was declared effective by the SEC on July 14, 2023. During the quarter ended September 30, 2025, 50,858 shares were sold under the Sales Agreement for net proceeds of \$442.

On August 4, 2025, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement for an at-the market PIPE (private investment in public equity) for the purchase and sale of securities at a price of \$10.45 per unit, consisting of: (a) 906,687 shares of common stock (or pre-funded warrants in lieu thereof); (b) three-year warrants to purchase 906,687 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$10.20 per share; and (c) three-year warrants to purchase 906,687 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$50.00 per share, for expected aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$9,475. The Company agreed that the net proceeds of the sale will be used to purchase Solana's native token, SOL. On August 19, 2025, this securities purchase agreement was terminated with mutual consent of the Company and investors and all proceeds received from investors were returned.

On September 4, 2025, the Company entered into an Underwriting Agreement (the "Underwriting Agreement") with R.F. Lafferty, the sole book-running manager and underwriter, relating to an underwritten offering of (i) 640,924 shares of common stock at a price to the public of \$4.40 per share, and (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 40,894 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share, at a price to the public of \$4.399 per pre-funded warrant, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$3,000, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other estimated offering expenses of \$130 resulting in net proceeds of \$2,870. The offering was closed on September 5, 2025. The Company delivered the securities to the R.F. Lafferty on the same day.

To continue operations, the Company will be required to raise additional funds by completing additional equity or debt offerings or licensing our product candidates. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in acquiring additional funding, that the Company's projections of its future working capital needs will prove accurate, or that any additional funding would be sufficient to continue operations in future years. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.

Negative Global or National Events

Businesses have been and will continue to be impacted by a number of challenging global and national events and circumstances that continue to evolve, including tariffs, trade disputes, extreme weather conditions, increased economic uncertainty, inflation, interest rate fluctuation, recent and any potential future financial institution failures, and conflicts in Eastern Europe, the Middle East and in other countries. The extent of the impact of these events and circumstances on our business, operations and development timelines and plans remains uncertain, and will depend on certain developments, including the duration and scope of the events and their impact on our development activities, third-party manufacturers, and other third parties with whom we do business, as well as its impact on regulatory authorities and our key scientific and management personnel. We have been and continue to actively monitor the potential impacts that these various events and circumstances may have on our business, and we take steps, where warranted, to minimize any potential negative impacts on our business resulting from these events and circumstances. The ultimate impact of these global and national events and circumstances, either individually or in aggregate, is highly uncertain and subject to change.

Reverse Stock Split

On June 12, 2025, the Company filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada a Certificate of Change, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 78.209, to effect a one-for-six (1-for-6) reverse stock split (the "Reverse Split") of the Company's issued and outstanding common stock, par value \$0.001 per share. The Reverse Split was effective as of 12:01 a.m. Eastern Time on June 13, 2025. Pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes 78.207, the Company's board of directors has the authority to effect a reverse stock split without stockholder approval if the number of authorized shares of common stock and the number of outstanding shares of common stock are proportionally reduced.

As a result of the Reverse Split, each six (6) pre-split shares of common stock outstanding were automatically combined into one (1) new share of common stock without any action on the part of the holders, and the number of outstanding shares of common stock was reduced from 3,280,000 to approximately 546,667. The number of authorized shares of common stock was reduced from 50,000,000 to 8,333,333, while the number of authorized shares of preferred stock was reduced from 416,667 to 69,444. On August 28, 2025, the Company held a special meeting of stockholders in which the shareholders voted to increase the authorized number of shares of common stock from 8,333,333 shares to 500,000,000 shares.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and GAAP in the United States of America. The accompanying interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP for interim financial information in accordance with Article 8 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the Company's opinion, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year. While management of the Company believes that the disclosures presented herein are adequate and not misleading, these interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and the footnotes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2024, contained in the Company's Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 3, 2025.

All amounts in these financial statements, notes and tables have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, except share amounts, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

The financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis including the Company's wholly owned subsidiaries, Trinity Reliant Ventures Limited, Artelo Biosciences Limited and Artelo Biosciences Corporation. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Research and Development ("R&D")

R&D expenses consist primarily of costs related to clinical studies and outside services, personnel expenses, and other R&D expenses. Clinical studies and outside services costs relate primarily to services performed by clinical research organizations associated with clinical trials and related clinical or development manufacturing costs, materials, and supplies, filing fees, regulatory support, and other third-party fees. Personnel expenses relate primarily to salaries and benefits. R&D expenditures are charged to operations as incurred.

The Company recognizes R&D tax credits received from the United Kingdom government for spending on R&D as an offset of R&D expenses. The Company received R&D tax credits of \$704 and \$1,349 during the nine months ended September 30, 2025, and 2024, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks, money market funds, commercial paper, and certificates of term deposits with maturities of less than three months from inception, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which, in the opinion of management, are subject to an insignificant risk of loss in value. The Company had \$1,720 and \$2,338 in cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Periodically, the Company may carry cash balances at financial institutions more than the federally insured limit of \$250 per institution. The amount in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance as of September 30, 2025, was approximately \$1,220. The Company has not experienced losses on these accounts and management believes, based upon the quality of the financial institutions, that the credit risk with regard to these deposits is not significant.

Marketable Securities

Our investments in debt securities are carried at fair value. Investments in debt securities that are not classified as held-to-maturity are carried at fair value and classified as either trading or available-for-sale. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading debt securities are charged to income and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale debt securities are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The marketable securities held by the Company, classified as trading marketable securities, had an outstanding balance of \$0 as of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024.

Intangible Assets

The Company capitalizes certain costs related to the acquisition of intangible assets. If such assets are determined to have a finite useful life they are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life.

The Company tests its intangible assets for impairment at least annually and whenever events or circumstances change that indicate impairment may have occurred. A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include, among others and without limitation: a significant decline in the Company's expected future cash flows; a sustained, significant decline in the Company's stock price and market capitalization; a significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate of the Company's segments; unanticipated competition; and slower growth rates. The Company determined that there was no impairment of its intangible assets at September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024.

Digital Assets

The Company's digital assets consist solely of our investment in Solana's native token, SOL, which the Company intends to hold for a period of at least one year from the date of purchase. The Company retains ownership of and control over its digital assets and utilizes a third-party custodial service to secure it. The cost basis of the Company's digital assets is calculated using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

The Company initially records its digital assets at their cost, which includes the capitalization of any transaction costs or fees, which are subsequently, remeasured at fair value based on the SOL price quoted from its principal market at the end of each reporting period in accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, with changes in fair value recognized on the consolidated statements of operations.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The Company has operations outside of the United States, which results in exposure to market risks from changes in foreign currency rates. The financial risk arises from the fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the degrees of volatility in these rates. Currently the Company does not use derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates and monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the end of the year. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates for the year. Gains and losses from translation of foreign currency financial statements into U.S. dollars are included as other comprehensive income.

Financial Instruments

The Company follows ASU 2022-03, ASC Subtopic "Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Fair Value Measurement of Equity Securities Subject to Contractual Sale Restrictions" ("ASC 820"), which defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between (1) market participant assumptions developed based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions developed based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1

Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.

Level 3

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The carrying amounts shown of the Company's financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock option awards at the date of grant, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected volatility and expected life. Changes in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measure of estimated fair value of our share-based compensation. These assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop. When estimating fair value, some of the assumptions will be based on, or determined from, external data and other assumptions may be derived from our historical experience with stock-based payment arrangements. The appropriate weight to place on historical experience is a matter of judgment, based on relevant facts and circumstances. The Company accounts for forfeitures of stock options as they occur.

Net Loss per Share of Common Stock

Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock plus the effect of dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method and as if converted method. Dilutive potential common shares include outstanding stock options and warrants.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2025, and 2024, the following common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share as the result was anti-dilutive.

	September 30, 2025	September 30, 2024
Stock options	227,842	127,184
Warrants	746,086	23,316
	973,928	150,500

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate and discrete information is available for evaluation by the chief operating decision-maker ("CODM") in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. The Company's CODM is its chief executive officer. The Company's CODM evaluates the Company's operations and manages its business as a single operating segment. All of the Company's long-lived assets are held in the United States. Refer to Note 3 for the Company's disclosure on its single operating segment.

New Accounting Standards Adopted

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company adopted ASU 2023-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60): Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets ("ASU 2023-08"). The standard requires all entities holding cryptocurrency assets to measure these assets at fair value and disclose significant holdings. As the current reporting period was the first period in which the Company held cryptocurrency assets, there was no impact on any prior reporting periods as a result of the adoption of this standard.

NOTE 3 – SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments comprised of the components of an entity in which separate information is available for evaluation by the Company's CODM, or group of decision makers, in determining how to allocate resources in evaluating performance. The Company consists of a single reporting segment: life science. The life science segment is comprised of the Company's development of therapeutics that target lipid-signaling modulation pathways, including the ECS, a network of receptors and neurotransmitters that form a biochemical communication system throughout the body. The Company's CODM is its chief executive officer.

The accounting policies of the life science segment are as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The CODM evaluates the performance of the life science segment based on the Company's net loss as reported on the income statement as consolidated net loss. The Company's segment assets are reported on the balance sheet as its total consolidated assets.

The Company has not generated any revenue since its inception and expects to continue to incur losses into the foreseeable future as it continues to conduct research and development related activities through all stages of product development and clinical trials and subsequently seek approval from the respective regulatory authorities. The Company's CODM utilizes cash forecast models to determine the Company's investment in the life sciences segment. These models are reviewed regularly to monitor the Company's operating results and performance and compared to the Company's cash-based forecasts.

		Three Months Ended September 30,				
			2025		2024	
General and administrative						
Employee and director compensation		\$	229	\$	228	
Stock-based compensation			240		135	
Professional fees			1,013		181	
Other general and administrative (a)			332		326	
Total general and administrative		\$	1,814	\$	870	
			Nine Mon Septem			
		_	2025	_	2024	
General and administrative						
Employee and director compensation		\$	700	\$	702	
Stock-based compensation			440		408	
Professional fees			2,050		734	
Other general and administrative (a)			898		935	
Total general and administrative		\$	4,088	\$	2,779	
			Three Mor Septem		0,	
			2025		2024	
Research and development						
Employee compensation		\$	267	\$	157	
Stock-based compensation			188		74	
Professional fees			262		1,137	
Other research and development (b)			558		(1,043)	
Total research and development		\$	1,275	\$	325	
	12					

	Nine Mon Septem		
	 2025		2024
Research and development			
Employee compensation	\$ 743	\$	625
Stock-based compensation	331		209
Professional fees	3,466		3,483
Other research and development (b)	(10)		(800)
Total research and development	\$ 4,530	\$	3,517

- (a) Consists of investor relations, travel and other office expenses.
- (b) Consists of supplies and other items used in research and development activities.

NOTE 4 - DIGITAL ASSETS

The Company's digital asset holdings as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 consist of the following:

	As of	Septe	ember 30	2025	5	As of December 31, 2024						
			Cost		Cost Basis		Fair		Cost		Fair	_
_	Units	I	Value	Units			Basis		Value			
Solana (SOL)	1,524.69	\$	250	\$	325	-	\$	_	\$	-		
			250		325			-		-		

The following represents the movement of the fair value of the Company's digital asset holdings:

	Solana (SOL)
December 31, 2024	\$ -
Purchase of digital assets	250
Change in fair value	75
September 30, 2025	\$ 325

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, and 2024, a company owned by the Senior Vice President, European Operations, provided consulting services totaling \$14 and \$7, respectively. As of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, there was \$1 and \$1, outstanding, respectively.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, and 2024, a company significantly influenced by a director of a subsidiary of the Company provided professional services totaling \$71 and \$87, respectively. As of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, there was \$24 and \$36 outstanding, respectively.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, and 2024, a company controlled by a director of a subsidiary of the Company provided professional services totaling \$55 and \$58, respectively. As of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, there was \$7 and \$24 outstanding, respectively.

NOTE 6 – CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Between April 27, 2025, and May 1, 2025, the Company entered into subscription agreements with various investors, pursuant to which the Company issued convertible notes (the "Notes") to the investors in an aggregate principal amount of \$900 (collectively, the "Notes Offering"). A portion of the Notes shall be convertible into shares of the Company's common stock, at the election of each investor, pursuant to the Voluntary Conversion (defined below) and the remaining portion of each Note shall be converted into warrants to purchase shares of the Company's common stock. The sale and issuance of the Notes closed on May 1, 2025.

At the Maturity Date (defined below), the investor may (at the investor's sole option) convert all of that certain unpaid portion of principal and accrued interest of the investor's Note into shares of common stock (the "Voluntary Conversion"), specifically into that number of shares of common stock (the "Converted Shares") equal to the unpaid principal balance and any accrued interest of each Note convertible pursuant to the Voluntary Conversion shall be the number of Converted Shares multiplied by \$6.24. Should the investor not elect Voluntary Conversion, such portion of the unpaid principal balance and any accrued interest of each Note subject to Voluntary Conversion shall be immediately due and payable in cash.

The Notes will accrue interest at a rate of 12% per annum, which will adjust to 20% upon an Event of Default (as defined in the Notes). All unpaid principal, together with any then unpaid and accrued interest and other amounts payable thereunder, shall be due and payable 180 days after the closing of the Notes Offering (the "Maturity Date").

Upon the closing of the Notes, the Company recorded deferred debt costs of \$163 associated with transaction costs of the Notes. As of September 30, 2025, the net carrying value of the Notes is \$875 which includes principal of \$900 and deferred debt costs of \$25. During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company recorded interest expense of \$183 associated with the accretion of accrued interest of \$46 and \$137 amortization of deferred debt costs.

Effective October 28, 2025, the Company entered into an agreement pursuant to which it issued and sold to certain investors, and the investors purchased (by converting all or a portion of the unconverted portion of unpaid principal balance and accrued interest due to such investors upon the maturity of the convertible promissory notes issued to the investors on May 1, 2025): (i) convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of \$690; and (ii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 438,182 shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, at an exercise price of \$3.40 per share. The notes will accrue interest at a rate of 12% per annum. All unpaid principal, together with any then unpaid and accrued interest and other amounts payable thereunder, shall be due and payable six months after the effective date. Each warrant is immediately exercisable after issuance for five (5) years.

NOTE 7 - EQUITY

Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 69,444 shares of preferred stock with a par value of \$0.001 per share.

As of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, there were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Common Stock

The Company has authorized 500,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of \$0.001 per share. Each share of common stock entitles the holder to one vote, in person or proxy, on any matter on which an action of the stockholders of the Company is sought.

As of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, there were 1,555,493 and 567,582 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, respectively.

On June 26, 2025, the Company closed a private placement of (i) 136,843 shares of the Company's common stock at \$5.82 per share, (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase 93,180 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at \$5.819 per pre-funded warrant, (iii) warrants to purchase 460,046 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$5.82 per share, and (iv) warrants to purchase 230,023 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$10.00 per share. Each share or, at the election of the purchaser in lieu of shares, each pre-funded warrant, was issued and sold along with two (2) \$5.82 warrants and one (1) \$10.00 warrant. The combined purchase price for the securities was (i) \$6.195 per share of common stock and three accompanying warrants and (ii) \$6.194 per pre-funded warrant and three accompanying warrants. Total gross proceeds were \$1,425, net proceeds were \$1,079 after transaction costs of \$346.

On July 18, 2025, the Company entered into a Sales Agreement with R.F. Lafferty under which we may offer and sell up to \$6.5 million of shares of our common stock from time to time through an "at the market" offering program under which R.F. Lafferty will act as sales agent. Under the Sales Agreement, the Company will set the parameters for the sale of shares, including the number or dollar amount of shares to be issued, the time period during which sales are requested to be made, limitations on the number or dollar amount of shares that may be sold in any one trading day and any minimum price below which sales may not be made. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, R.F. Lafferty may sell the shares by methods deemed to be an "at the market" offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act. We have no obligation to sell any shares under the Sales Agreement and may at any time suspend solicitation and offers under the Sales Agreement. The shares will be issued pursuant to the Company's shelf registration statement on Form S-3, including the prospectus supplement contained therein, which was declared effective by the SEC on July 14, 2023. During the quarter ended September 30, 2025, 50,858 shares were sold under the Sales Agreement for net proceeds of \$442.

On September 4, 2025, the Company entered into an Underwriting Agreement with R. F. Lafferty, the sole book-running manager and underwriter, relating to an underwritten offering of (i) 640,924 shares of common stock at a price to the public of \$4.40 per share, and (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 40,894 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at a price to the public of \$4.399 per pre-funded warrant, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$3,000, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other estimated offering expenses of \$130 resulting in net proceeds of \$2,870. The offering was closed on September 5, 2025.

Warrants

A summary of activity of the warrants during the nine months ended September 30, 2025, is as follows:

	Number of Shares	Weigl Aver Exercise	age	Weighted Average Life (years)
Outstanding, December 31, 2024	23,315	\$	67.50	0.79
Granted	824,143		6.04	5.00
Expired	-		-	-
Exercised	(101,372)		1.30	=
Outstanding, September 30, 2025	746,086	\$	8.60	4.59

The intrinsic value of the warrants as of September 30, 2025, is \$254. All of the outstanding warrants are exercisable as of September 30, 2025.

2018 Equity Incentive Plan

On February 28, 2025, the number of shares available under the Company's 2018 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (the "2018 Plan"), was increased by 80,693 shares of common stock.

As of September 30, 2025, the 2018 Plan permits the Company to issue up to an aggregate of 335,564 shares of common stock of which 107,722 shares are available to be issued

The following is a summary of stock option activity during the nine months ended September 30, 2025:

	Options O	utstanding		Weighted Average		
		d	, g -			
	Number of Options	Average Exercise P	Remaining Life (years)			
Outstanding, December 31, 2024	128,976	\$	11.03	7.76		
Granted	98,866		11.03	10.00		
Exercised	-		-	-		
Forfeited/canceled	-		-	-		
Outstanding, September 30, 2025	227,842	\$	11.03	8.20		
Exercisable options, September 30, 2025	73,112	\$	12.78	7.21		

Valuation

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes model to value its stock options. During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company utilized the following assumptions:

	Nine Months
	Ended
	September 30,
	2025
Expected term	5.50 - 5.78 years
Expected average volatility	97 - 98 %
Expected dividend yield	-
Risk-free interest rate	3.87%

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company granted 98,866 options, valued at \$849 of which 41,493 options, valued at \$356, were for related parties. As of September 30, 2025, \$1,094 remains unamortized, of which \$613 is for related parties. The intrinsic value of options outstanding as of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, is \$0 and \$0, respectively.

NOTE 8- INTANGIBLE ASSET

The Company has capitalized the costs associated with acquiring the exclusive worldwide license to develop and commercialize products comprising or containing the compound ART27.13 as an intangible asset at a value of \$2,039 as of September 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024.

The amount capitalized consisted of a \$1,500 payment and the fair value of 681 shares of common stock of \$539. During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, no additional costs met the criteria for capitalization as an intangible asset.

NOTE 9 - LEASE

On May 12, 2021, the Company entered into a lease arrangement for office space in the U.S. with Beckman/Lomas LLC, an entity controlled by a close family member of a director. Effective June 1, 2022, the related party divested its interests in the property, and as such, the lease agreement no longer constitutes a related party transaction. On March 6, 2024, the Company entered into an amended agreement with the landlord to extend the lease commencing in September 2024, and effective until August 2027.

The following summarizes right-of use asset and lease information about the Company's operating leases as of September 30, 2025:

	Nine Months Ended September 30,			
	 2025		2024	
Lease cost				
Operating lease cost	\$ 26	\$	24	
Other information				
Cash paid for operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 26	\$	22	
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liability	\$ -	\$	111	
Weighted-average remaining lease term — operating leases (year)	1.83		2.83	
Weighted-average discount rate — operating leases	7.50%		7.50%	

Future minimum lease payments under the operating lease liability have non-cancellable lease payments at September 30, 2025, as follows:

	Total
Year Ended December 31,	
2025	\$ 11
2026	43
2027	30
2028	-
Thereafter	-
	84
Less: Imputed interest	(5)
Operating lease liabilities	79
Operating lease liability - current	39
Operating lease liability - non-current	\$ 40

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has certain financial commitments relating to research and development contracts as of September 30, 2025, as follows:

- The Company is invoiced monthly and quarterly in connection with several research and development contracts.
- The Company may be obligated to make additional payments related to research and development contracts entered into, dependent on the progress and milestones achieved through the programs.
- The Company's principal executive office is currently located at 505 Lomas Santa Fe Drive, Suite 160, Solana Beach, CA, USA. Additionally, we have an office outside Manchester, UK, which serves as administrative spaces for managing our subsidiaries, Trinity Reliant Ventures, Ltd (Ireland) and Artelo Biosciences Limited (UK). We do not currently own any properties, laboratories, or manufacturing facilities. The Solana Beach lease runs through August 2027, and the Manchester UK lease is month-to-month.

NOTE 11 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 1, 2025, the Company closed an underwritten offering of (i) 441,210 shares of common stock at a price to the public of \$4.40 per share, and (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 13,335 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at a price to the public of \$4,399 per pre-funded warrant, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$2,000, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and the other estimated offering expenses. Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company has granted R.F. Lafferty a 45-day option to purchase up to an additional 68,181 shares of common stock at \$4.40 per share and/or pre-funded warrants at \$4,399 per pre-funded warrant, less the underwriting discounts to cover over-allotments, if any.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that are based on management's beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to management. Some of the statements in the sections captioned "Risk Factors," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," "Business," and elsewhere contain forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify these statements by terms such as "anticipate," "believe," "could," "estimate," "expects," "intend," "may," "plan," "potential," "predict," "project," "should," "will," "would" or the negative of these terms or other comparable expressions that convey uncertainty of future events or outcomes, although not all forward-looking statements contain these terms. Unless otherwise noted, all amounts are expressed in United States dollars ("USD") and "we", "us", "our" and the "Company" refer to Artelo Biosciences, Inc., including its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Trinity Reliant Ventures Limited, in Ireland, Artelo Biosciences Limited, in England and Wales, and Artelo Biosciences Corporation, in Canada, unless otherwise indicated.

These statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from the information expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about:

- our financial condition and our ability to continue as a going concern;
- · our plans to obtain funding for our operations, including funding necessary to complete our clinical trials, develop, manufacture and commercialize our product candidates;
- · our ability to raise any current or future funding to meet our capital requirements;
- the expected timing of the initiation and completion of our clinical studies for our product candidates;
- the size and growth of the markets for our product candidates;
- · our commercialization, marketing, and manufacturing capabilities and strategies;
- eopolitical tensions, including tariffs and any war, regional conflict, or acts of terror, that can disrupt investment, supply chains and the economy generally;
- our ability to compete with companies currently producing alternative treatment methods;
- the cost, timing and outcomes of any potential litigation involving our product candidates;
- · regulatory developments in the U.S. and internationally;
- the development, regulatory approval, efficacy and commercialization of competing product candidates;
- · our ability to attract and retain key scientific or management personnel;
- the scope of protection we are able to establish and maintain for intellectual property rights covering our products and technology;
- the terms and conditions of licenses granted to us and our ability to license additional intellectual property related to our product candidates, as appropriate;
- · potential claims related to our intellectual property;
- the accuracy of our estimates regarding expenses, future revenue, capital requirements and needs for additional financing;
- · our ability to regain and maintain compliance with Nasdaq listing requirements;
- our ability to develop and maintain our corporate infrastructure, including our internal controls;
- · our cash investment strategy;
- · our ability to develop innovative new product candidates; and
- · our financial performance.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. We discuss these risks in greater detail in Part II, Item 1A. "Risk Factors" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements as a representation or warranty by us or any other person that we will achieve our objectives and plans in any specified time frame, or at all. Also, forward-looking statements represent our management's beliefs and assumptions only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

In addition, statements that include terms such as "we believe" and similar terms reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based upon information available to us as of the date of this filing, and while we believe such information forms a reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain, and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.

Our interim financial statements are stated in USD and are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the related notes that appear elsewhere in this annual report. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below and elsewhere in this annual report.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information that our management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the Company's condensed consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read together with the condensed consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes to those statements that are included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 3, 2025. This discussion may contain forward-looking statements based upon current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth in the section titled "Risk Factors" in Part II, Item 1A as set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

General Overview

We are a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company focused on the development and commercialization of therapeutics that target lipid-signaling modulation pathways, including the endocannabinoid system (the "ECS"), a network of receptors and neurotransmitters that form a biochemical communication system throughout the body.

Our product candidate pipeline broadly leverages leading scientific methodologies and balances risk across mechanisms of action and stages of development. Our programs represent a comprehensive approach in utilizing the power and promise of lipid signaling to develop pharmaceuticals for patients with unmet healthcare needs. We are currently developing a dual cannabinoid (CB) agonist that targets both the CB₁ and CB₂ receptors. This synthetic small molecule program is a G protein-coupled receptor ("GPCR") designated ART27.13. We are developing ART27.13 as a potential treatment for cancer-related anorexia and it is currently in a Phase 1b/2a trial, titled the Cancer Appetite Recovery Study ("CAReS").

Our second program, ART26.12 is a small molecule and the lead product candidate from our chemical library of inhibitors of fatty acid binding proteins, notably Fatty Acid Binding Protein 5 ("FABP5"). We received U.S. Food & Drug Administration (the "FDA") clearance for our Investigational New Drug ("IND") application for ART26.12 in July 2024 and have completed enrolment to a Phase 1 clinical trial in healthy subjects to support the development towards an agent intended to treat chemotherapy-induced peripheral neuropathy. In addition, ART26.12 may have broad applications as a cancer therapeutic, as a treatment for dermatologic conditions, such as psoriasis, as a treatment for pain and inflammation, and potential use in anxiety-related disorders, including post-traumatic stress disorder. In June 2025, we announced favorable results from our first-in-human study evaluating ART26.12. The Phase 1 Single Ascending Dose (SAD) study was designed to assess the safety, tolerability, and pharmacokinetics of ART26.12 in healthy volunteers and enrolled 49 subjects. All adverse events (AEs) were mild, transient, and self-resolving. No drug-related AEs were observed in the blinded dataset, and no tolerability issues or safety signals were detected across multiple assessments (vital signs, ECGs, clinical laboratory tests, physical examinations, and visual analogue mood scales). In addition, full dose-exposure profiles were successfully explored. Plasma analysis confirmed dose-dependent, linear absorption across the evaluated range. A wide safety margin was observed between estimated therapeutic plasma concentrations and the highest exposure levels achieved, supporting potential titration for maximum efficacy in future studies.

We are also developing our own invention ART12.11 (the "CBD cocrystal"). ART12.11 is our patented solid-state composition of cannabidiol ("CBD") and tetramethylpyrazine ("TMP"). TMP serves as the coformer in the CBD cocrystal. ART12.11 may be considered by the regulatory authorities as a fixed drug combination instead of a new chemical entity ("NCE").

We obtained two of our patent protected product candidates through our in-licensing activities. Our first in-licensed program, ART27.13, is being developed for cancer-related anorexia. ART27.13 is a peripherally-selective high-potency dual CB₁ and CB₂ full-receptor agonist, which was originally invented at AstraZeneca plc ("AstraZeneca"). We exercised our option to exclusively license this product candidate through the NEOMED Institute ("NEOMED"), a Canadian not-for-profit corporation, renamed adMare Bioinnovations ("adMare") in June 2019, which had obtained rights to ART27.13 from AstraZeneca. In Phase 1, single dose studies in healthy volunteers and a multiple ascending dose study in individuals with chronic low back pain conducted by AstraZeneca, ART27.13 exhibited an attractive pharmacokinetic and absorption, distribution, metabolism, and excretion profile and was well tolerated within the target exposure range. It also exhibited dose-dependent and potentially clinically meaningful increases in body weight. Importantly, the changes in body weight were not associated with fluid retention or other adverse effects and occurred at exposures without central nervous system ("CNS") side effects. Discussions with United Kingdom ("UK"), U.S. and Canadian regulators indicate there is a potential pathway for development of ART27.13 for the treatment of cancer-related anorexia, which affects approximately 60% of advanced stage cancer patients.

We commenced enrollment and dosed the first patient in CAReS, our Phase 1b/2a clinical study of cancer-related anorexia with ART27.13 in April 2021 and completed enrolling patients in the Phase 1b during the first quarter of 2023. Data from the Phase 1b stage was used to determine the most effective and safe dose selected as the starting dose for the Phase 2a portion of CAReS. We received approval from the regulatory authorities in the UK, Ireland and Norway to increase the daily dose from the starting dose of 650 micrograms to 1,000 micrograms after 4 weeks and up to 1,300 micrograms initiated at 8 weeks in patients for whom intra-patient dose escalation is expected to be well tolerated. We also received approval from the regulatory authorities to enroll 40 evaluable patients into the Phase 2a stage with a 3:1 randomization of ART27.13 to placebo. We initiated the Phase 2a portion of CAReS during April 2023. As of May 6, 2025, 18 clinical sites across five countries were open for enrollment.

As of June 30, 2025, 32 participants have been enrolled. On September 3, 2025, we announced interim results from the Phase 2a CAReS trial. In the interim analysis, 18 evaluable patients—primarily with lung and gastrointestinal cancers not receiving cyclic chemotherapy—were included. After 12 weeks of treatment in patients who titrated to the top dose evaluated of 1300 micrograms (n=5), ART27.13 demonstrated compelling increases in mean body weight of 6.38% (Standard Deviation or SD 9.50) compared to patients on placebo (n=6) who lost -5.42% (SD 8.17). The maximum weight gain in the ART27.13 group reached 18.5%, versus only 0.4% in placebo. The maximum weight loss in the placebo arm was -17.4%, compared to just -3.0% in the ART27.13 group. Additional benefits were seen in lean body mass, with a +4.23% increase (SD 5.37) in the treatment group versus a -3.15% loss (SD 4.89) in placebo at one month, as well as qualitative improvements in total and weekly activity scores.

Safety results were consistent with prior findings. Among the 32 participants enrolled in the CAReS Phase 2 trial to date, 7 patients (22%) experienced adverse events that may be related to ART27.13. All were mild or moderate, with the exception of a single case of severe malaise, and no drug-related serious adverse events were reported. These data are aligned with safety outcomes observed in Phase 1 of CAReS, supporting ART27.13's overall favorable tolerability and acceptable safety profile.

Our second in-licensed patented program is being advanced from our platform of small-molecule inhibitors of fatty acid binding proteins, notably FABP5. Fatty acid binding proteins ("FABPs") are attractive therapeutic targets, however, the high degree of sequence and structural similarities among family members made the creation of drugs targeting specific FABPs challenging. FABP5 is believed to specifically target and regulate one of the body's endogenous cannabinoids, anandamide ("AEA"). While searching for a FABP5 inhibitor to regulate AEA, researchers at Stony Brook University ("SBU") discovered the chemistry for creating a large library of compounds which we believe to be highly specific and potent small molecule inhibitors of FABP5 and other isoforms. SBU received approximately \$8.0 million in funding from the National Institutes of Health to develop FABP5 inhibitor candidates including a \$4.2 million grant in 2020 to advance research of FABP5 inhibition in prostate cancer. We licensed the rights to world-wide intellectual property in all fields and certain know-how to these inhibitors from SBU.

Our lead FABP5 inhibitor program is designated ART26.12. Preclinical research with ART26.12 showed evidence of activity in multiple pain models including osteoarthritis, cancer bone pain, and neuropathic pain. Based upon positive preclinical evidence from five separate studies showing promising activity and a differentiated mechanism-of-action for the prevention and treatment of painful neuropathies, including diabetic neuropathy and Chemotherapy Induced Peripheral Neuropathy ("CIPN"), we prioritized CIPN as the initial indication for development of ART26.12. Treatment and/or prevention of CIPN is a significant unmet need, often resulting in anti-cancer treatment delays or discontinuations, and there are currently no approved treatments for CIPN by the regulatory authorities in the U.S., UK or EU. We submitted an IND application for ART26.12 to the FDA on 10th of June 2024 and received a study may proceed notice from the FDA on the 8th of July 2024. First-in-human studies for ART26.12 began in Q4 of 2024 and we successfully completed dosing all 48 healthy volunteers planned for the Phase 1 Single Ascending Dose study at the end of April 2025. In addition to its potential as a synthetic endocannabinoid modulator with development targeting pain, inflammation, dermatologic conditions such as psoriasis, FABP5 is understood to play an important role in lipid signaling and is believed to be an attractive strategy for drug development in oncology. Large amounts of human biomarker and animal model data support FABP5 as an oncology target, including triple negative breast cancer, ovarian cancer, cervical cancer, and castration-resistant prostate cancer. Through our sponsored research we have also subsequently identified a potential role for FABP5 inhibition to treat anxiety disorders, such as Post Traumatic Stress Disorder ("PTSD"). We have been awarded a research grant in Canada to expand on our earlier research at the University of Western Ontario in this new development area.

In addition to our in-licensed programs, we have internal discovery research initiatives which resulted in ART12.11, a proprietary cocrystal composition of CBD and TMP. The crystal structure of CBD is known to exhibit solid polymorphism, or the ability to manifest in different forms. Polymorphism can adversely affect stability, dissolution, and bioavailability of a drug product and thus may affect its quality, safety, and efficacy. Based upon our research, we believe our CBD cocrystal exists as a single crystal form and as such is anticipated to have advantages over other solid forms of CBD that exhibit polymorphism. Emerging data demonstrates potential advantages of this single crystal structure, including improved stability, solubility, and a more consistent absorption profile. We believe these features have contributed to a more consistent and improved bioavailability and pharmacokinetic profile which may ultimately lead to improved safety and efficacy in human therapeutics, as already demonstrated in animal studies.

Presently, we have two U.S. patents, one pending U.S. patent application, six foreign patents (Australia, Brazil, China, Mexico, Japan and Taiwan) and three pending foreign patent applications (Canada, Europe, and South Korea) directed to our cocrystal composition of CBD. Composition claims are generally known in the pharmaceutical industry as the most desired type of intellectual property and should provide for long lasting market exclusivity for our synthetic CBD cocrystal drug product candidate. In addition, due to the reasons outlined above, we believe that our synthetic CBD cocrystal will continue to demonstrate a superior set of pharmaceutical properties compared to non-cocrystal CBD compositions. We plan to develop ART12.11 for multiple potential indications where CBD has shown activity of such anxiety disorders, including PTSD, depression, and other possible uses such as epilepsy and insomnia.

We are developing our product candidates in accordance with traditional regulated drug development standards and expect to make them available to patients via prescription or physician orders only after obtaining marketing authorization from a country's regulatory authority, such as the FDA. Our management team has experience developing, commercializing, and partnering ethical pharmaceutical products, including several first-in-class therapeutics. Based upon our current management's capabilities and the future talent we may attract, we plan to retain rights to internally develop and commercialize products; however, we may seek collaborations with partners in the biopharmaceutical industry when a partnering strategy serves to maximize value for our stockholders.

Recent Developments

On October 1, 2025, we closed an offering underwritten offering of (i) 441,210 shares of common stock at a price to the public of \$4.40 per share, and (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 13,335 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at a price to the public of \$4.399 per pre-funded warrant, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$2 million, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and the other estimated offering expenses. Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, we granted R.F. Lafferty a 45-day option to purchase up to an additional 68,181 shares of common stock at \$4.40 per share and/or pre-funded warrants at \$4.399 per pre-funded warrant, less the underwriting discounts to cover over-allotments, if any.

Effective October 28, 2025, we entered into an agreement pursuant to which it issued and sold to certain investors, and the investors purchased (by converting all or a portion of the unconverted portion of unpaid principal balance and accrued interest due to such investors upon the maturity of the convertible promissory notes issued to the investors on May 1, 2025): (i) convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of \$690; and (ii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 438,182 shares of our common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, at an exercise price of \$3.40 per share. The notes will accrue interest at a rate of 12% per annum. All unpaid principal, together with any then unpaid and accrued interest and other amounts payable thereunder, shall be due and payable six months after the effective date. Each warrant is immediately exercisable after issuance for five (5) years.

Digital Asset Treasury Strategy — Solana (SOL)

Background

Under the June 2025 private placement offering, we committed to use \$250,000 of consideration received in connection with a private placement of equity securities to acquire Solana's native token, SOL. This initial \$250,000 in SOL is held in custody with BitGo, a U.S.-regulated, qualified digital-asset custodian, and is maintained as a long-term, non-core treasury reserve asset measured at fair value pursuant to ASU 2023-08. Changes in fair value flow through net income each reporting period. The Audit Committee will receive reports covering holdings, valuation, counter-party exposure, and compliance with Board resolutions on a quarterly or more frequent basis. A written transaction record is maintained for every SOL purchase or custodial movement and is reconciled daily to custodial statements.

To date, this private placement offering-related resolution, together with the related delegation of authority to management to execute the purchase, constitutes the full extent of Board authorization with respect to digital-asset activity. No comprehensive digital-asset treasury policy has yet been adopted, nor have we adopted formal internal controls or protocols governing the movement or custody of SOL beyond the standard procedures provided by BitGo, and no authorization has been given to stake, lend, pledge, rehypothecate, or otherwise deploy our SOL for yield. Digital-asset treasury disclosures (including this description) will be included in our annual and quarterly reports on Forms 10-K and 10-Q, so that the full Board, the Audit Committee, and outside auditors and advisors can review and comment prior to filing. See "Risk Factors – Risks relating to SOL" in our filings with the SEC for a description of the material risks that apply to our holdings of SOL.

Description of Solana (SOL) and Rationale for Acquisition

SOL is the native digital asset of the Solana blockchain, an open-source, high-performance blockchain designed for speed and scalability. Solana employs a unique hybrid consensus mechanism that combines proof-of-history (PoH) with proof-of-stake (PoS), enabling high throughput and low transaction costs. SOL is primarily used to pay transaction fees (as the network's "gas" token) and as a means of staking to support the network's consensus and security, with validators and delegators earning rewards for their participation.

The Solana blockchain supports a wide range of decentralized applications (dApps), including decentralized finance (DeFi) protocols, non-fungible token (NFT) marketplaces, and other Web3 projects. As of the date of this filing, Solana has a robust and growing ecosystem, with significant developer activity and adoption across multiple sectors.

From a tokenomics perspective, Solana was launched with an initial supply of 500 million SOL, with new tokens created through inflationary rewards distributed to validators and delegators. The inflation rate is designed to decrease over time, providing a long-term supply schedule that supports both network security and economic sustainability.

The Board determined that acquiring SOL as a treasury asset is supported by several factors: (i) exposure to SOL offers potential long-term appreciation and may help preserve the purchasing power of our excess liquidity; (ii) SOL is highly liquid relative to many other digital assets, with deep spot markets on multiple U.S.-regulated trading venues; (iii) the Solana ecosystem continues to expand, particularly in DeFi, NFT infrastructure, and other Web3 use cases, which may drive further demand and utility for SOL. The Board also considered the technical maturity of the Solana network, its institutional-grade custody solutions, and the optionality for future yield generation through staking, subject to further Board approval.

Key Trends and Factors Affecting Comparability Between Periods

- Our historical financial statements do not reflect the potential variability in earnings that we may experience in the future from holding or selling significant amounts of SOL. The prices of digital assets have historically been subject to dramatic price fluctuations and are highly volatile. In December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update 2023-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60): Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto Assets ("ASU 2023-08"), which we are required to adopt under GAAP. ASU 2023-08 requires us to measure our SOL holdings at fair value in our statement of financial position, and to recognize gains and losses from changes in the fair value of our SOL in net income each reporting period. ASU 2023-08 also requires us to provide certain interim and annual disclosures with respect to our SOL holdings. As a result, volatility in our earnings may be significantly more than what we experienced in prior periods.
- We expect to continue to incur future R&D expenses associated with the continued development of our drug candidates. The level of expenses will be highly dependent upon the scope of pre-clinical and clinical development activities and strategies and will also be directly dependent upon the level of our available funding for R&D activities.
- · We expect to continue to incur general and administrative expenses in the future, which are expected, in the near-term, to be broadly comparable to the level of general and administrative expenses incurred year-to-date.

Components of Our Results of Operations

Revenue

To date, we have not generated any revenue and we may not generate any revenue from the sale of products or from other sources in the near future.

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses into research and development, and general and administrative expenses. Research and development expense consists of expenses incurred while performing research and development activities to discover and develop our product candidates. This includes conducting preclinical studies and clinical trials, development efforts and activities related to regulatory filings for product candidates. We recognize research and development expenses as they are incurred. Our research and development expense primarily consists of costs incurred in research and development partnerships, preliminary studies, development of potential intellectual property, and research initiatives. General and administrative expense consists of professional fees, stock-based compensation, executive and director compensation and other administrative costs.

Other Income

Our other income consists of interest income and changes in fair value of our trading marketable securities.

Three months ended September 30, 2025, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2024

Three Months Ended					
September 30,					
2025 2024			Change		
\$	1,814	\$	870	\$	944
	1,275		325		950
	3,089		1,195		1,894
	(3,089)		(1,195)		(1,894)
	(31)		63		(94)
\$	(3,120)	\$	(1,132)	\$	(1,998)
	\$	\$ 1,814 1,275 3,089 (3,089) (31)	September 3 2025 \$ 1,814 \$ 1,275 3,089 (3,089) (31)	September 30, 2025 2024 \$ 1,814 \$ 870 1,275 325 3,089 1,195 (3,089) (1,195) (31) 63	September 30, 2025 2024 \$ 1,814 \$ 870 \$ 1,275 325 3,089 1,195 (3,089) (1,195) (31) 63

Our operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2025, were \$3.1 million compared to \$1.2 million for the same period in 2024. The increase in operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2025, was primarily the result of increases in professional fees associated with our capital raising efforts and increases in research and development expenditures related to our clinical programs. During the three months ended September 30, 2024, the Company received research and development expenditures tax credits of \$1.3 million from the UK Government while the same tax credits in the current year were received during the prior quarter.

Nine months ended September 30, 2025, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024

	Nine Months Ended September 30,						
(In thousands)		2025 2024			Change		
Operating expenses							
General and administrative	\$	4,088	\$	2,779	\$	1,309	
Research and development		4,530		3,517		1,013	
Total operating expenses		8,618		6,296		2,322	
Loss from operations		(8,618)		(6,296)		(2,322)	
Other income (expense)		(95)		248		(343)	
Net loss	\$	(8,713)	\$	(6,048)	\$	(2,665)	

Our operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, were \$8.6 million compared to \$6.3 million for the same period in 2024. The increase in operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, was primarily the result of increases in professional fees associated with our capital raising efforts, increases in research and development expenditures related to our clinical programs, as well as a decrease in research and development tax credits from the UK Government during the current period compared to the same period during the prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Liquidity is the ability of a company to generate funds to support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations and otherwise operate on an ongoing basis.

Since our inception, we have not generated any revenue from product sales and have incurred significant operating losses and negative cash flows from our operations. Our net loss was \$8.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025. As of September 30, 2025, we had cash and cash equivalents of \$1.7 million.

In May 2022, we entered into a purchase agreement and a registration rights agreement (the "Equity Line") with an institutional investor, providing for the sale of up to \$20.0 million worth of our common stock over the thirty-six (36) month term of the purchase agreement, which has now expired. As of September 30, 2025, in accordance with the Equity Line we issued a total of 74,153 shares of our common stock under the purchase agreement with aggregate proceeds of \$0.7 million.

In July 2023, we filed a \$75.0 million in aggregate value shelf registration statement on Form S-3 which became effective on July 14, 2023. The shelf registration statement is effective for three years and permits us to sell, from time to time, up to \$75.0 million of our common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants, and/or units subject to a limit of one-third (1/3) of the our public float within a twelve (12) month period if the public float is less than \$75.0 million as of relevant measurement dates under applicable securities laws.

On May 1, 2025, we issued at-market, unsecured convertible notes with gross proceeds of \$0.9 million. The convertible notes bear interest at 12.0% and have a maturity of 180 days. The convertible notes are subject to voluntary and automatic provisions for conversion into our common stock, as well as conversion into warrants to purchase our common stock for a five-year period at a price of \$6.24. Certain members of our board of directors, an officer and consultants acquired \$0.4 million of the convertible notes.

On June 24, 2025, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with the purchasers named therein, for the private placement of (i) 136,843 shares of our common stock at \$5.82 per share, (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase 93,180 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at \$5.819 per pre-funded warrant, (iii) warrants to purchase 460,046 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$5.82 per share, and (iv) warrants to purchase 230,023 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$10.00 per share. Total gross proceeds were \$1.4 million, net proceeds were \$1.1 million after transaction costs of \$0.3 million.

On July 18, 2025, we entered into an At-The-Market Offering Agreement (the "Sales Agreement") with R.F. Lafferty & Co., Inc. ("R.F. Lafferty") under which we may offer and sell up to \$6.5 million of shares of our common stock from time to time through an "at the market" offering program under which R.F. Lafferty will act as sales agent. Under the Sales Agreement, we will set the parameters for the sale of shares, including the number or dollar amount of shares to be issued, the time period during which sales are requested to be made, limitations on the number or dollar amount of shares that may be sold in any one trading day and any minimum price below which sales may not be made. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Sales Agreement, R.F. Lafferty may sell the shares by methods deemed to be an "at the market" offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated under the Securities Act. We have no obligation to sell any shares under the Sales Agreement and may at any time suspend solicitation and offers under the Sales Agreement. The shares will be issued pursuant to our shelf registration statement on Form S-3, including the prospectus supplement contained therein, which was declared effective by the SEC on July 14, 2023. During the quarter ended September 30, 2025, 50,858 shares were sold under the Sales Agreement for net proceeds of \$0.4 million.

On August 4, 2025, we entered into a securities purchase agreement for an at-the market PIPE (private investment in public equity) for the purchase and sale of securities at a price of \$10.45, consisting of: (a) 906,687 shares of common stock (or pre-funded warrants in lieu thereof); (b) three-year warrants to purchase 906,687 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$10.20 per share; and (c) three-year warrants to purchase 906,687 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$50.00 per share, for expected aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$9.5 million. We agreed that the net proceeds of the sale will be used to purchase SOL. On August 19, 2025, this securities purchase agreement was terminated with mutual consent of us and investors and all proceeds received from investors were returned.

On September 4, 2025, we entered into an Underwriting Agreement (the "Underwriting Agreement") with R.F. Lafferty, the sole book-running manager and underwriter, relating to an underwritten offering of (i) 640,924 shares of common stock at a price to the public of \$4.40 per share, and (ii) pre-funded warrants to purchase up to 40,894 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$0.001 per share at a price to the public of \$4.399 per pre-funded warrant, for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately \$3.0 million, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other estimated offering expenses of \$0.1 million resulting in net proceeds of \$2.9 million. The offering was closed on September 5, 2025. We delivered the securities to R.F. Lafferty on the same day.

In order to continue operations, we will be required to raise additional funds by completing additional equity or debt offerings or licensing our product candidates. We are currently pursuing various financing strategies. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in acquiring additional funding, that our projections of our future working capital needs will prove accurate, or that any additional funding would be sufficient to continue operations in future years. These conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities if we are unable to continue as a going concern.

Funding Requirements

To date, we have not generated any revenue and we may not generate any revenue from the sale of products or from other sources in the near future. We expect our expenses and capital requirements will increase substantially in connection with our ongoing activities as we:

- continue our research and development activities;
- maintain, protect and expand our intellectual property portfolio, including patents, trade secrets and know how;
- · implement operational, financial and management information systems;
- attract, hire and retain additional management, scientific and administrative personnel; and
- · operate as a public company.

We continue to face challenges and uncertainties and, as a result, our available capital resources may be consumed more rapidly than currently expected due to: delays in execution of our product development plans; the scope and timing of our investment in our research and development activities and capabilities; changes we may make to the business that affect ongoing operating expenses; the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights; changes we may make in our business strategy; our need to implement additional infrastructure and internal systems; the impact of the conflicts in Eastern Europe, the Middle East and in other countries; and other items affecting our forecasted level of expenditures and use of cash resources including potential acquisitions.

Until such time as we can generate significant revenue, if ever, we will continue to require substantial additional capital to fund operations for the foreseeable future. We intend to obtain such capital through public or private equity offerings or debt financings, credit or loan facilities or a combination of one or more of these funding sources. We may also seek additional financing opportunistically. We may be unable to raise additional funds on favorable terms or at all. Our ability to raise additional funds may be adversely impacted by potential worsening global economic conditions and the recent disruptions to, and volatility in, the credit and financial markets in the United States and, recent and any potential future financial institution failures, the conflicts in Eastern Europe, the Middle East and in other countries, and otherwise. Our failure to raise additional capital, if needed, would have a negative impact on our financial condition and our ability to execute our business plan.

Our expected future capital requirements depend on many factors including expansion of our product portfolio and the timing and extent of spending on research and development activities. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders will experience dilution. Any future debt financing into which we enter may impose upon us additional covenants that restrict our operations, including limitations on our ability to incur liens or additional debt, pay dividends, repurchase our common stock, make certain investments and engage in certain merger, consolidation or asset sale transactions. Any debt or additional equity financings that we complete may contain terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders.

Working Capital

	September 30, Dec		ember 31,			
(In thousands)	2025		2024		Change	
Current Assets	\$	1,827	\$	2,557	\$	(730)
Current Liabilities		4,860		1,772		3,088
Working Capital	\$	(3,033)	\$	785	\$	(3,818)

Our total current assets as of September 30, 2025, were \$1.8 million as compared to total current assets of \$2.6 million as of December 31, 2024. The decrease in current assets was primarily due to the funding of our operating activities in excess of the cash raised in our financings completed during the current year.

Our total current liabilities as of September 30, 2025, were \$4.9 million as compared to total current liabilities of \$1.8 million as of December 31, 2024, the result of our deferring payment to certain vendors as a result of our cash preservation strategy.

Historical Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:

	Nine Months Ended September 30,					
(In thousands)		2025 2024		2024	Change	
Cash flows used in operating activities	\$	(5,609)	\$	(5,783)	\$	174
Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities		(250)		7,269		(7,519)
Cash flows provided by financing activities		5,260		55		5,205
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash		(19)		1		(20)
Net change in cash and cash equivalent during period	\$	(618)	\$	1,542	\$	(2,160)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, cash used in operating activities was \$5.6 million compared to \$5.8 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Cash used in operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2025, was attributed to a net loss of \$8.7 million offset by decreases in operating assets and increases in liabilities of \$2.2 million and non-cash stock-based compensation of \$0.8 million. Cash used in operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, was attributed to a net loss of \$6.0 million and a non-cash gain of \$0.2 million associated with our trading of marketable securities and decreases in operating assets and liabilities of \$0.1 million offset by stock-based compensation of \$0.6 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, cash provided by investing activities was \$0.3 million compared to \$7.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Cash flows used in financing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2025, were the result of our investment in Solana. Cash flows provided by investing activities of \$7.3 million was the result of \$7.8 million received from dispositions of trading marketable securities offset by \$0.5 million from purchases of trading marketable securities.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, cash flows provided by financing activities was \$5.3 million compared to \$0.1 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, cash flows provided by financing activities were the result of the net proceeds from the issuance of common shares of \$4.5 million and net proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes of \$0.7 million. During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, cash flows provided by financing activities were comprised of proceeds from the issuance of common stock of \$0.1 million.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

For a discussion of our contractual obligations and commitments, refer to Part II, Item 8, Note 10, "Commitments and Contingencies" to the financial statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to stockholders.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis and base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for the judgments we make about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Because these estimates can vary depending on the situation, actual results may differ from these estimates. Making estimates and judgments about future events is inherently unpredictable and is subject to significant uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. Should any of these estimates and assumptions change or prove to have been incorrect, it could have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position and statement of cash flows.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, including indefinite life intangible assets and operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets, for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. We group assets at the lowest level for which cash flows are separately identified in order to measure an impairment. Events or circumstances that would result in an impairment review include a significant change in the use of an asset, the planned sale or disposal of an asset, or a projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived asset or asset group. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or asset group. If the asset or asset group is determined to be impaired, the impairment recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the asset or asset group exceeds its fair value.

Assumptions and estimates used to determine cash flows in the evaluation of impairment and fair values used to determine the impairment are subject to a degree of judgment and complexity. Any future changes to the assumptions and estimates resulting from changes in actual results or market conditions from those anticipated may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets and could result in additional impairment charges, and such changes could be material.

Accrued Clinical Trial and Research and Development Expenses

As part of the process of preparing our financial statements, we are required to estimate our accrued expenses as of each consolidated balance sheet date. This process involves reviewing open contracts and purchase orders, communicating with our personnel to identify services that have been performed on our behalf and estimating the level of service performed and the associated cost incurred for the service when we have not yet been invoiced or otherwise notified of the actual cost. We make estimates of our accrued expenses as of each consolidated balance sheet date based on facts and circumstances known to us at that time. We periodically confirm the accuracy of our estimates with the service providers and make adjustments, if necessary. The significant estimates in our accrued clinical trial and research and development expenses include the costs incurred for services performed by our vendors in connection with clinical trial and research and development activities for which we have not yet been invoiced.

We base our expenses related to clinical trial and research and development activities on our estimates of the services received and efforts expended pursuant to quotes and contracts with vendors that conduct clinical trials and research and development on our behalf. The financial terms of these agreements are subject to negotiation, vary from contract to contract and may result in uneven payment flows. There may be instances in which payments made to our vendors will exceed the level of services provided and result in a prepayment of the clinical trial and research and development expense. In accruing service fees, we estimate the time period over which services will be performed and the level of effort to be expended in each period. If the actual timing of the performance of services or the level of effort varies from our estimate, we adjust the accrual or prepaid expense accordingly. Advance payments for goods and services that will be used in future clinical trial or research and development activities are expensed when the activity has been performed or when the goods have been received rather than when the payment is made.

Although we do not expect our estimates to be materially different from amounts actually incurred, if our estimates of the status and timing of services performed differ from the actual status and timing of services performed, it could result in us reporting amounts that are too high or too low in any particular period. To date, there have been no material differences between our estimates of such expenses and the amounts actually incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense represents the cost of the grant date fair value of equity awards recognized over the requisite service period of the awards (usually the vesting period) on a straight-line basis. We estimate the fair value of equity awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and recognize forfeitures as they occur. Estimating the fair value of equity awards as of the grant date using valuation models, such as the Black-Scholes option pricing model, is affected by assumptions regarding a number of variables, including the risk-free interest rate, the expected stock price volatility, the expected term of stock options, the expected dividend yield and the fair value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Changes in the assumptions can materially affect the fair value and ultimately how much stock-based compensation expense is recognized. These inputs are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop. See Note 7 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for information concerning certain of the specific assumptions we used in applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the estimated fair value of our stock options granted, if any, during the three months ended September 30, 2025, and 2024.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. The estimates and judgments will also affect the reported amounts for certain revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these good faith estimates and judgments.

New Accounting Standard Adopted

There were no new accounting standards adopted during the nine months ended September 30, 2025.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As a "smaller reporting company," we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive principal financial and principal accounting officer), has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of September 30, 2025.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the period covered by this report there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Control systems, no matter how well conceived and operated, are designed to provide a reasonable, but not an absolute, level of assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Because of the inherent limitations in any control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be involved in various claims and legal proceedings relating to claims arising out of our operations. We are not currently a party to any legal proceedings that, in the opinion of our management, are likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Regardless of outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Not Applicable.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

There were no sales of unregistered securities by us during the third quarter of 2025 that were not previously reported in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or current reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

Securities Trading Plans of Directors and Executive Officers

During our last fiscal quarter, none of our directors or officers, as defined in Rule 16a-1(f), adopted and/or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement" or a "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement," as defined in Regulation S-K Item 408.

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No.	Description
3.1	Articles of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 11, 2023)
3.2 3.3	Certificate of Change (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 13, 2025)
<u>3.3</u>	Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 21, 2023)
<u>3.4</u>	Certificate of Amendment to Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 10, 2025)
<u>4.1</u>	Form of Pre-Funded Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 5, 2025)
3.4 4.1 4.2	Form of Pre-Funded Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 1, 2025)
<u>10.1</u>	At-The-Market Offering Agreement by and among the Artelo Biosciences, Inc. and R.F. Lafferty & Co., Inc., dated as of July 18, 2025 (incorporated by
	reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 18, 2025)
<u>10.2</u>	Form of Securities Purchase Agreement by and between Artelo Biosciences, Inc. and the investors named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
	the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 4, 2025)
10.3	Consulting Agreement by and between Artelo Biosciences, Inc. and ABK Labs, Inc., dated August 1, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
	Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 7, 2025)
<u>10.4</u>	Form of Termination and Mutual Release Agreement by and between Artelo Biosciences, Inc. and the investors named therein (incorporated by reference to
	Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 20, 2025)
<u>10.5</u>	Termination Agreement by and between Artelo Biosciences, Inc. and ABK Labs, Inc., dated August 19, 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
	Company's Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 20, 2025)
<u>10.6</u>	Cooperation Letter Agreement dated October 15, 2025, among the Company and the Farb Parties (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's
	Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 17, 2025)
31.1*	Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
<u>31.2*</u>	Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
32.1**	Section 906 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
32.2**	Section 906 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
101.INS	Inline XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

^{*} Filed herewith

^{**} The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and 32.2 that accompanies this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, are deemed furnished and not filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Artelo Biosciences, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

Dated: November 12, 2025

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Artelo Biosciences, Inc.
(Registrant)

/s/ Gregory D. Gorgas

Gregory D. Gorgas

President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Mark Spring

Mark Spring

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory D. Gorgas, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Artelo Biosciences, Inc.;
- Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(f)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 12, 2025

/s/ Gregory D. Gorgas

Gregory D. Gorgas President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark Spring, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Artelo Biosciences, Inc.;
- Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(f)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 12, 2025

/s/ Mark Spring

Mark Spring
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Artelo Biosciences, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Gregory D. Gorgas, Chief Executive Officer, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 12, 2025

/s/ Gregory D. Gorgas

Gregory D. Gorgas
President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Artelo Biosciences, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Mark Spring, Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 12, 2025

/s/ Mark Spring

Mark Spring
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)